
*In accordance with GVR Bylaws, all meetings of the Board at which official business of The Corporation is transacted, with the exception of meetings limited to personnel and/or legal matters, shall be open to all members 
of The Corporation. An executive session “placeholder” is added to each Regular Meeting Board agenda should the Board have personnel and/or legal matters to address. Meetings shall be governed by Roberts Rules of Order 
unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors. 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, September 22, 2021 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Mike Zelenak (President), Nina Campfield (Vice President), Ted Boyett (Secretary), 
Donna Coon (Treasurer), Mark McIntosh (Assistant Secretary), Randy Howard (Assistant Treasurer), 
Kathi Bachelor, Carol Crothers, Christine Gallegos, Connie Griffin, Bart Hillyer, Bev Lawless,  
Scott Somers (non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC PRESENTER EXHIBIT ACTION 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum Zelenak 

2. Adopt Agenda Zelenak Y Y 

3. CEO Report Somers 

4. Consent Agenda Zelenak Y Y 
A. Minutes:
 BOD Work Session Minutes: August 25, 2021
 BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: August 25, 2021

B. Financial Statements: August 2021

5. New Business
A. CPM Amendments: Facility Use Griffin Y Y 
B. CPM Amendments: New Operating Cash Policy Campfield/Coon Y Y 
C. Quarterly Financial Presentation Webster 

6. Committee Reports
A. Audit Griffin 
B. Board Affairs Campfield 
C. Fiscal Affairs Coon 
D. Investments Lawless 
E. Nominations & Elections McIntosh 
F. Planning & Evaluation Boyett 

7. Member Comments

8. Adjournment





MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION 

Wednesday, August 25, 2021 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors Present: Mike Zelenak (President), Nina Campfield (Vice President), Ted 
Boyett (Secretary), Donna Coon (Treasurer), Mark McIntosh (Assistant Secretary), 
Randy Howard (Assistant Treasurer), Kathi Bachelor, Carol Crothers, Christine Gallegos, 
Bart Hillyer, Bev Lawless, Don Weaver, Scott Somers (CEO, non-voting) 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), 
David Webster (Interim CFO/Director of Accounting), Natalie Whitman (Communications 
Manager), Karen Miars (Administrative Assistant) 

Visitors: 19 (includes additional staff) 

1. Call to Order
The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Zelenak called the meeting to order at 1:00pm MST. Secretary Boyett
called the roll; quorum established.

2. Discussion: FAC discussion of formula and recommendation to transfer funds
from Operations to Initiatives Reserve
FAC Chair Donna Coon and GVR Interim CFO David Webster presented an overview of
the Operating Cash Ad Hoc Committee’s findings to identify a proper and appropriate
formula for establishing minimum cash needs in the Operations Fund and to
recommend a transfer of funds from Operations to Initiatives above and beyond
minimum cash needs. A lengthy discussion followed.

In the regular meeting of the Board following the Work Session, the Board will be
asked to adopt the recommended formula and the motion of the FAC to transfer
$500,000 from Operating Cash to the Initiatives Board Designated Reserve.

Exhibits used in this discussion were the Operating Cash Investment Maximization
memo and the GVR Projection of Operating Cash.

3. Adjournment
President Zelenak adjourned the meeting at 1:56pm MST.

Agenda Item: 4.A. 08252021 WS Minutes





MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, August 25, 2021 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors Present: Mike Zelenak (President), Nina Campfield (Vice President), Ted Boyett 
(Secretary), Donna Coon (Treasurer), Mark McIntosh (Assistant Secretary), Randy Howard 
(Assistant Treasurer), Kathi Bachelor, Carol Crothers, Christine Gallegos, *Connie Griffin, 
Bart Hillyer, Bev Lawless, *Don Weaver, Scott Somers (CEO, non-voting) 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), 
David Webster (Interim CFO/Director of Accounting), Natalie Whitman (Communications 
Manager), Karen Miars (Administrative Assistant) 

Visitors: 25 (includes additional staff) 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call – Establish Quorum
The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Zelenak called the meeting to order at 2:04pm MST. Secretary Boyett
called the roll; quorum established.

2. Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Boyett moved, seconded to adopt the Agenda as presented.
Passed: unanimous

3. CEO Report
 CEO Scott Somers welcomed Administrative Supervisor Nanci Moyo to GVR.
 Canoa Hills Parking Lot – GVR to close on purchase next week.
 East Center Pool Replacement – Staff will distribute a Request for Proposals for the

construction of the East Center Pool next week. In September, staff anticipates
bringing a recommendation before the Board to approve a contractor to build the
East Center Pool.

 Free movies at GVR - Flyers will be displayed at the major Centers.
 GVRNow! - The updated and refreshed issue will be displayed at Centers on

September 3.
 2021 Fall Course Catalog and the GVR Live! 2021/2022 Arts & Entertainment

Brochure are in Centers today.
 Signage - New signage going up at all Centers to help members see what’s

important, what to focus on, and to support our brand and our marketing.

4. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Campfield moved, seconded to approve the Consent
Agenda as presented:
 Board of Directors Work Session Minutes: May 26, 2021
 Board of Directors Work Session Minutes: July 21, 2021
 Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes: July 28, 2021
 Financial Statements: July 2021

Agenda Item: 4.A. 08252021 BOD Minutes



2 

It was asked that members be made aware of the 2019/2020 surplus/loss posted on 
pages 16-21 of the July 20, 2021 Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) meeting report on 
the GVR website referred to in the May 26, 2021 Work Session Minutes.  
Passed: unanimous 

5. New Business
A. Consider FAC Recommendation: Transfer 2020 Operations Surplus to

Initiatives Reserve
FAC Chair Donna Coon reported on the August 17, 2021 FAC meeting (in the Staff
Report).

MOTION: Director Coon moved, seconded to authorize staff to transfer the
2020 Operations surplus of $125,871 to the Initiatives Reserve Account.
Passed: unanimous

B. Consider FAC Recommendation: Transfer Funds from Operations to
Initiatives Reserve
FAC Chair Coon discussed details of the calculation of the required cash in the
Operating Cash Account (in the Staff Report).

MOTION: Director Coon moved, seconded to adopt the recommended
formula and to transfer $500,000 from Operating Cash to the Initiatives
Board Designated Reserve.
Passed: unanimous

C. Create Reserve Account for Pool and Spa Replacement
FAC Chair Coon presented details of the August 17, 2021 FAC meeting where
options were presented by the Browning Reserve Group for adding a pool and spa
replacement account to the MRR Reserve Study (Meeting Book Attachment 5.C.1.).
It was determined that the best option was to create a separate Part B account.

CEO Somers explained the need for the creation of the MRR Part B account. He
explained how the funding of MRR Part B would come out of Operations by a FAC
recommendation. At present, Somers stated Operations is not planning or
anticipating a 2022 Dues increase.

MOTION: Director Coon moved, seconded to authorize staff to create a
separate Major Pool and Spa Replacement account as Part B of the
existing MRR Reserve, and to eliminate the recently approved Major Asset
Replacement Fund (MAR).
Passed: unanimous

6. Committee Reports
A. Audit Committee

Committee Chair Don Weaver reported. Director Weaver announced his immediate
resignation from the Board of Directors due to his upcoming move to Tennessee.
President Zelenak and Directors thanked Director Weaver for his time and service
on the Board of Directors.

Per GVR Bylaws regarding Board vacancies in Article VI.1.F: Any vacancy in the
office of a Director shall, if possible, be filled by the unsuccessful candidate of the
most recent Directors’ election, who, of those willing to fill the vacancy, received
the greatest number of votes. Connie Griffin agreed to fill the unexpired term of
Don Weaver which ends in 2022.



3 

*Director Griffin took Mr. Weaver’s place at the Board of Directors meeting.

B. Board Affairs
Committee Chair Nina Campfield reported (received and placed on file).

C. Fiscal Affairs
Committee Chair Donna Coon reported (received and placed on file).

D. Investments
Committee Chair Bev Lawless reported (received and placed on file).

E. Nominations & Elections
Committee Chair Mark McIntosh reported (received and placed on file).

F. Planning & Evaluation
Committee Chair Ted Boyett reported (received and placed on file).

7. Member Comments – 4

8. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Campfield moved, seconded to adjourn the meeting at
3:13pm MST.
Passed: unanimous





Agenda Item: 4.B.













Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 
Board of Directors, Regular Meeting 

Amend CPM – Facility Use 
Prepared By: Connie Griffin Meeting Date: 9/22/21 
Staff Support:  Nanci Moyo 
Presented By: Connie Griffin Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: Board Affairs Committee (BAC) 

Action Requested: 
Amend the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) Section IV – Facility Use, Subsection 1. General 
Facilities Rules and Regulations, Paragraph L to read as follows: 
L. GVR facilities will not be used by any member for commercial purposes with the following
exceptions: (1) with the prior written approval of GVR administration, a GVR member may
temporarily display items for sale at a particular facility if they are intended to assist or 
benefit those using that facility to participate in the associated/related activity; and (2)s. 
Ppersonal sales resulting from hobby pursuits. are permitted  It is the responsibility of each 
individual seller to obtain an Arizona Transaction Privilege Tax License. 

Strategic Plan Goal: GOAL 3. Promote increased involvement of members in GVR 

Background Justification: 
It was brought to the BAC’s attention that a GVR member has been displaying Pickleball 
paddles near the Pickleball courts. These paddles were not being sold on GVR property, but 
were available for GVR members to try out prior to deciding to purchase a specific 
make/model. The CPM does not address products being displayed on GVR property or if 
there needed to be GVR administration permission. This addition to the CPM allows for the 
display of items on GVR property with written permission from the GVR administration.   

Impact: The CPM will correctly represent GVR policy. 

Recommended Motion: 
I move to update the CPM by changing Section IV.1.L to read: GVR facilities will not be used 
by any member for commercial purposes with the following exceptions: (1) with the prior 
written approval of GVR administration, a GVR member may temporarily display items for 
sale at a particular facility if they are intended to assist or benefit those using that facility to 
participate in the associated/related activity; and (2) personal sales resulting from hobby 
pursuits.  It is the responsibility of each individual seller to obtain an Arizona Transaction 
Privilege Tax License. 

Attachments: None 

Agenda Item: 5.A.





Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Amend CPM – Operating Cash Policy
Prepared By: Donna Coon, FAC Chair Meeting Date: 9/22/21 
and David Webster, CFO 
Presented By: Donna Coon, FAC Chair Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: Fiscal Affairs/Finance and Operating Cash Ad Hoc 

Action Requested:  Approve the Operating Cash Policy as written per the attachment 
and approve including it in the CPM as Section V Fiscal/Accounting, Subsection 3 – 
Operating Cash Policy.  

Strategic Plan Goal: Goal 4 Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates 
good value for our members.  

Background Justification: 
The Fiscal Affairs Committee formed the Operating Cash Ad Hoc committee to study and 
clarify how GVR maintains its cash accounts so they are readily available during the year 
to fund the day-to-day operations of GVR. The Ad Hoc committee had two objectives: 

Objective 1 - Create a new subsection for the CPM, under Section V Fiscal/Accounting, to 
explain how GVR manages its cash accounts to meet the working capital needs of GVR. It 
will also include the formula in Objective 2 (below) which will be used to determine 
minimum requirements of cash needed in the Operating Cash accounts. 

Objective 2 - Develop a formula to use when determining how much cash GVR needs to 
have available at different points during the fiscal year. This formula was approved at 
the August Board of Directors meeting. 

Fiscal Impact: 
The Operating Cash Policy will allow the Finance department to maximize investments of 
operating cash while ensuring adequate cash is available to fund the annual operational 
expenses of GVR. 

Board Options: 
1. Approve the Operating Cash Policy as written.
2. Table this Policy for further discussion.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve the Operating Cash Policy as written per the attachment and approve including 
it in the CPM as Section V Fiscal/Accounting, Subsection 3 – Operating Cash Policy. 

Attachments: 
Operating Cash Policy for CPM 

Agenda Item: 5.B.



SECTION V – FISCAL/ACCOUNTING 

SUBSECTION 1. FISCAL POLICY – GENERAL 
SUBSECTION 2 - RESERVE POLICY – updated 01/29/2020 

SUBSECTION 3 – OPERATING CASH POLICY 

A. Overview

Green Valley Recreation, INC (GVR) maintains two operating cash accounts to ensure access to
working capital needed to fund the day-to-day operations of GVR. This includes board approved
transfers to reserve funds as described in Section V, Subsection 2. The following information
describes  the purpose, methodology to determine level of cash needed during the year, and
monitoring responsibility for these cash funds.

B. Purpose

To be fiscally responsible and implement best practices related to cash management, the cash
management policy must:

1. Allow for easy accessibility of funds to meet the working capital needs of GVR.
2. Recognize the seasonality of the income flow.
3. Be consistent with the Investment Policy established for that account.

C. Description of Cash Accounts

1. Operating Cash Bank Account

a. Consists of all deposits at a local bank, including, but not limited to annual membership
dues, Property Acquisition Capital Fee (PACF), tenant fees, and program revenue.

b. All checks are written on this account for operating expenses.

c. Withdrawals are also done for the transfer of board approved amounts to each reserve
fund as described in Section V, Subsection 2.

2. Operating Cash Investment Account

a. This is the holding account maintained by the investment manager that is selected and
approved by the Board. These funds are invested pursuant to the Investment Policy in
Appendix I, Subsection 3.

b. Staff is authorized to transfer funds between this account and the operating cash bank to
meet daily expenses as necessary.

c. Due to fluctuations in cash needs this account may be ‘rebalanced’ periodically to allow
excess cash to be moved to an appropriate reserve account.

Attachment:  5.B.



D. Operating Cash Policy

1. Methodology for Determining Level of Total Cash Required:  GVR’s approved operating
budget requires following the steps as described below in determining the annual cash needs
of the organization.

 Chart 1 - Total Annual Cash Required to Fund GVR For Fiscal Year 
Steps Description Example 

(Cy 2021) 
1. Use the Total Expense Budget approved by the Board $11,196,453 

2. Subtract Non-Cash Depreciation  (1,810,173) 

3. Subtract Expenses paid by Maintenance, Repair and
Reserve (MRR-A)

 (259,034) 

4. Add NonReserve Capital Purchases  205,000 

5. Subtract Reserve Fund Investment Fees (82,792) 

6. Add back the Reserve funding revenues approved to be
transferred to respective reserve accounts

a. Maintenance Repair and Replacement (Part A) 1,048,192 

b. Maintenance Repair and Replacement (Part B)  169,553 

c. Initiatives Reserve  507,315 

7. Total Annual Cash Required to Fund GVR for the 
Fiscal Year  

$10,974,514 

=== 

2. Determination of number of days of average cash on hand required: GVR follows the
best practices guideline that recommend a minimum cash balance, at the lowest point during
the year, of 90 days of the annual expenses (“90 Day Guideline”).

a. Prior to calculating the 90 Day Guideline, GVR will subtract the one-time annual
revenue transfer made to the MMR-A Reserve Fund in January of each year. This
allows GVR to maximize investment returns to the MMR-A fund.

b. The required cash will be divided by 365 days to determine the Average Daily Cash
Required. This amount will be multiped by 90 days to determine the 90 Day
Guideline.

c. This calculation will be made after the Board’s approval of the  budget for the
following year.



 Chart 2 - Total Cash Required to fund GVR for 90 Days 

=== 

3. Description and On-Going Monitoring of Cash Cycle:

1. GVR receives the majority of its revenues from member dues in Dec/January of each
year with other revenue streams budgeted on a monthly basis. Some expenses are
budgeted on an equal monthly basis; however, those that are seasonal, such as
member activities and facility maintenance expenses are budgeted as close to
expected timing of expense. As actual expenses are reported each month and reflected
in the monthly financial statements, staff may adjust the projected expense for the
remaining months to account for any timing issues related to the actual expenses.
Because of this seasonality of the collection of revenues and projected monthly
expenses, the chart below reflects the uneven nature of cash balances at the end of
each month. The cash balances are gradually spent down each month with the 90 Day
Guideline projected in November of each year.  GVR also subtracts the amount of the
Property Assessment Capital Fund (PACF) that has been paid to property owners. The
Auditors require this item be recorded in this manner.

2. Staff will monitor these cash balances as part of its monthly financial report. As actual
expenses and revenues are recorded, the projected cash balances may fluctuate
resulting in a change in the end of month cash on hand beyond the 90 Day Guideline.
If, after analysis and projections of the cash needs for the remaining months of the
calendar year, this variance is determined to be excess of cash needed, the Board may
review options to transfer this excess to other reserve accounts.

Steps Description Example 
(Cy 2021) 

1. Use Total Cash Required for fiscal year from Step 7 in
Chart 1

$10,974,514 

2. Subtract cash transfer to MRR Part A, in January
(1,048,192) 

3. Add Step 1 and 2 for Total Cash Required  9,926,322 

4. Days per Year 365 

5. Divide to get the Daily Average Cash Required
27,195 

6. Multiply by 90 days as best practice minimum days 90 

7. Total Cash Required to fund GVR for 90 Days 
$2,447,586 



 Chart 3 - Projecting Operating Cash Above the 90 Day Minimum 

=== 

Monthly Chart of Cash Flow with Projections for Remaining Months 

Steps Description Example  
(Cy 2021) 

1. Use Cash Balance Projected for November (from Monthly
Chart of Cash Flow with Projections for Remaining Months)

3,517,961 

2. Subtract PACF Allowance (312,340) 

3. Total Net Cash Available for Operating funds 3,205,621 

4. Divide by Daily Average Cash Required – Chart 2, step 5  27,195 

5. Number of Days of Operating Cash Available 118 

6. Total Net Cash Available for Operating funds (step 3 above) 3,205,621 

7. Take Minimum 90 Day Cash Minimum from Chart 2,
Step 7

(2,447,586) 

8. Projected Operating Cash Above the Minimum available for 
possible distribution to other Reserve Accounts 

 758,035 


	2  09222021 BOD Agenda
	4.A.1.  08252021 BOD Work Session Minutes - DRAFT
	4.A.2.  08252021 BOD Minutes - DRAFT
	4.B.  Financial Statements - August 2021
	5.A.  Staff Report Facility Use
	5.B.  Staff Report FAC Operating Cash Policy
	5.B.1.  Exhibit FAC Operating Cash Policy
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



